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Contact NCEH if you have additional Connections Project questions at nceh@heartlandalliance.org.  
 
 
1): Question: What forms do I need to complete and submit to NCEH for a complete LOI submission? 
Is there a template or instructions with specific information/questions to be answered for the LOI?  
 
To participate in the RFP process, all Connections Project applicants must submit a Letter of Intent 
and Letter of Intent Cover Sheet to the National Center on Employment and Homelessness that 
answers these question prompts (Connections Project Website). Connections Project Sites will have 
until February 20, 2015 at 7:00p.m. CT to submit a Letter of Intent and LOI Application Cover Sheet 
to the National Center on Employment and Homelessness (p.11 Connections Project Information 
Packet).  All documents needed for LOI submissions can be found on the Connections Project 
Website HERE.  
 
2): Question: I am having trouble accessing / unable to download and print the documents 
(application package) from your website. Are there special instructions regarding this? 
 
If you are unable to download application documents please email NCEH directly and we can send 
the necessary documents to you NCEH can be contacted directly at nceh@heartlandalliance.org.  
 
3): Question: Can this opportunity be leveraged to formalize and/or expand existing innovation or 
must the idea be completely "new"? 
 
We are looking for systems innovations and collaborations. In the Connections Project Information 
Packet we state that we are looking for “Proposed idea(s) that are bold and new or build on, 
improve, or modify existing evidence-based collaborations and innovation successes in your target 
geographic area” (P.7 Connections Project Information Packet.) 
 
4): Question: We currently have a model that we are using to provide employment and training 
services for homeless families. According to the RFP, it has to be an entirely new model, correct? 
 
Please see the response to question 3. Employment and vocational training for families experiencing 
homelessness is a great service model however the Connections Project is focused on systems 
change and will not provide funds for direct employment services. “The Connections Project will not 
fund proposals that focus on implementation, scaling, or replication of specific employment 
programs” (P.7 Connections Project Information Packet.) 
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5): Question: I'm still confused as to what constitutes as a "systems change." Do you refer to public 
systems such as Public Housing Authorities and Workforce Investment Boards? Are they required to 
be partners of this project?  
 
Workforce Investment Boards and Public Housing Authorities are all systems in which innovative 
connections project ideas would be considered. These systems are not required partners but if they 
are encompassed in your innovative idea it may make sense to include them as a partner. Other 
public systems may also make sense to include depending on your target population and systems 
innovation and collaboration idea. “Every Connections Project Site applicant team should have a 
single lead applicant and named partners working on the Connections Project idea. There is no 
required number of named partners Connections Project teams should have” (P.9 Connections 
Project Information Packet.) 
 
6): Question: Can you say more about this statement from Page 7 of the info packet: "...will not fund 
proposals that focus on implementation, scaling, or replication of specific employment programs, 
strategies, or program operations."? We have an existing program serving homeless youth, but we 
want to do it in a different way to reach more kids/increase access...with new partners. 
 
Sounds like you’re providing and thinking critically about how to best deliver services to homeless 
youth in your community. As mentioned in Question 3): Systems change is the goal of the 
Connections Project—while we will not make funds available for direct services if your Connections 
Project team creates a system innovation that focuses on access and that ultimately benefits the 
youth you’re engaged with we encourage you to think critically about submitting an LOI for the 
Connections Project.  
 
7): Question: Can you give specific example of an innovative idea that you’re looking for??   
 
The Connections Project is about “bold, fresh, and creative ideas. No idea is too big or too bold, too 
small or too specific, too untested or too radical. We are looking to select projects that will foster 
systems change that translates into improved employment outcomes for homeless jobseekers (p. 7 
Connections Project Information Packet). We don’t want to limit teams as to what constitutes a good 
idea. If we set out specific examples Connections Project Sites might limit their idea or hold back to 
keep with the example given or strive for something they might not be able to reach based on their 
bandwidth. So as hard as this may be – we’re going to hold back from putting out specific examples 
and let teams push themselves. We’re open to policy change that nudges systems to do something 
different. We’re open to changing processes, how information is shared among systems, the use of 
technology, and anything else you may dream up that supports the goals of greater access, 
employment, and earnings among adult and youth homeless jobseekers.   
 
8): Question: Can you explain what you mean by the project should be more than co-location of staff 
or services and fostering leadership participation? 
 
We know that Co-location of services and leadership participation efforts show great promise in 
increasing the employment and earnings for homeless jobseekers. We highly value these 
collaborative ideas and firmly believe they should be spread to every community nationwide. 
However, the aim of the Connections Project is to, “innovate beyond these types of system 
collaboration ideas. We aim to identify and select project awards to Connections Project Sites that 
seek to experiment and challenge their state and local systems. We want to see novel approaches, 
collaboration ideas that take risks or improve upon existing ideas, and inventive partnerships (p.7 
Connections Project Information Packet).   
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9): Question: Would programs serving recently-homeless/recently rehoused individuals be eligible or 
only those programs serving individuals who are currently homeless? How about formerly chronically 
homeless that are now in permanent supportive housing, but cannot access employment? Could our 
target population be chronic homeless veterans in the community? 
 
As outlined further in response to Question 11 – We’re allowing Connections Project Teams to define 
homelessness as it relates to their target population so the above mentioned populations as well as 
other populations affected by homelessness that teams may work with would be eligible. Our 
intention is that Connections Project Sites define their projects and identify their target population(s) of 
adult and/or youth homeless jobseekers based on demonstrated need, Connections Project goals, and 
partnerships” (P.7 Connections Project Information Packet). Remember - as mentioned in response to 
Question 3): Systems change is the goal of the Connections Project—while we cannot make funds 
available for direct service work.  
 
10): Question: Will proposed ideas be more competitive if they focus on serving populations aligned 
to federal priority efforts (such as ending veteran’s homelessness)?  
 
Proposals will all be evaluated with a primary focus on your systems innovation idea. Ultimately your 
idea is your competitive edge. “We are looking to select projects that will foster systems change that 
translates into improved employment outcomes for homeless jobseekers (p.7 Connections Project 
Information Packet).  We want Connections Project Sites to identify target populations based on 
defined as need in your community.  
 
11): Question: Are applicants expected to follow any specific definition of homelessness? We have 
families living with other families that we want to serve. For the purposes of this RFP how is 
homelessness defined? 

“Proposed ideas and target population(s) do not need to be constrained by specific technical 
definitions of homelessness. Our intention is that Connections Project Sites define their projects and 
identify their target population(s) of adult and/or youth homeless jobseekers based on 
demonstrated need, Connections Project goals, and partnerships” (P.7 Connections Project 
Information Packet). 
 
12): Question: Is there an expectation that other program funds will need to be leveraged to 
undertake the project? Is there a matching requirement? 

There is no matching requirement to receive funds from the Connections Project. We do ask that 
Connections Project Teams consider their, “potential to leverage in-kind or direct financial support to 
bolster the sustainability of proposed Connections Project idea(s) at the conclusion of the 
Connections Project” (p.7 Connections Project Information Packet). 
 
13): Question: so it is a max or $125k over three years, not $125k/year, correct?  

Yes that’s correct – “Selected Connections Project Sites may be awarded funding of up to $125,000 
per Connections Project Award Site over the full project period” (p.7 Connections Project Information 
Packet). These funds are awarded in addition to intensive technical assistance and peer learning 
opportunities and other supports.  
 
14): Question: Can the majority of the award be front loaded into the first half of the project for start-
up costs? 
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The Connections Project will not be able to front load funds as we’ve outlined “continued funding 
over the course of the three year period is contingent on Connections Project Sites advancing their 
work, maintaining engagement with NCEH staff, fully participating” (p.7 Connections Project 
Information Packet). 
 
15): Question: What are some of the typical expenses expected during 3 year project? Would you 
provide more clarity on what the financial award can be used for? Staff, direct services, etc. 
 
We expect that Connections Project ideas will vary and therefore will t need to utilize funds in a 
different ways– ultimately it is difficult to answer without knowing your specific site idea. We outline 
in the Connections Project Information Packet that funds can be used to “to support planning, 
convening, and/or staff time to advance Connections Project systems change activities” (p.5 
Connections Project Information Packet). Budgets are due in June from Connections Project Finalists 
and we will work with finalist’s teams on outlining potential expenses.  
 
16): Question: What role are you hoping that other funders will play in support of this project?  Are 
they eligible applicants as well, especially as more and more are starting to develop programs that 
work in direct compliment to their grant making? 
 
YES funders are eligible to be lead applicants as well as Connections Project Site partners (as 
outlined on page 10 of the Connections Project Information Packet.) Philanthropy could be a lead 
applicant as well as play a role of convener, provider of space, and chip in resources for ideas 
throughout the Connections Project term. 
 
17): Question: How do you define "community?"  Is there a point where a region becomes too large? 
Is there a minimum number of folks who should be served? 
 
Connections Project Teams can define the community they are targeting based on their innovation 
idea. We give some examples, “Tribal; regional; state; county; municipal.  Urban or rural “(P.9 
Connections Project Information Packet.) Connections Project Sites will define their geographic area 
in the LOI and Final Proposal stages. We will work with Connections Project Sites to figure out the 
best and most appropriate ways to measure Connections Project Site progress toward their identified 
goals over the course of the project period.  
 
18): Question: If we're the applicant organization but have partners, how many individuals will be 
allowed to attend the innovation workshop? 
 
We ask that finalist teams “select three to four members to participate. While finalists can 
determine the specific team members to participate, we expect at least one or two attendees to be 
those who will have direct responsibility or oversight for coordinating, planning, and implementing 
the proposed Connections Project idea(s).” (P.11 Connections Project Information Packet) 
 
19): Question: Can non-finalists attend [the Working to End Homelessness Innovation Workshop] at 
their own cost? 
 
We are excited at your enthusiasm! The Working to End Homelessness Innovation Workshop is 
limited in available space and time available from the coaches / experts. The workshop is geared 
specifically to helping teams refine their Connections Project innovation ideas. Connections Project 
Site teams that are not selected as Finalists will be unable to attend at their own cost. However 
Connection Project teams that do not get selected as finalists will still be able to work with NCEH on 
ways to strengthen and implement their ideas. Contact nceh@heartlandalliance.org for more on this. 
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Additionally – The National Initiatives on Poverty & Economic Opportunity will be hosting a 2016 
national conference that will benefit all applicants. We will be releasing more information on this 
mid-summer of 2015. This event will be open to all and full of resources as well as peer learning 
opportunities. To learn more about this event sign up for our e-news HERE.  
 
20): Question: During the LOI phase of the application process, is it a) required or b) recommended 
that applicants include letters of commitment from their project partners as attachments to their 
application? Thanks 
 
No – During the LOI phase it is not required to have letters of commitment from project partners. We 
do ask that Connections Project teams outline “named partners” with which they plan on connecting 
and partnering during the Connections Project term.  Down the road - Connections Project teams will 
be responsible for demonstrating the strength of their partnerships during the Final Proposal stage of 
the Request for Proposals process.  (p. 9 Connections Project Information Packet) 
 
21): Question: Can you submit two proposals from the same agency?  Can you submit 2 different 
ideas?  Would it be two proposals? 
 
Absolutely – we encourage submitting multiple bold and innovative ideas. If you happen to have 
multiple ideas and would like to submit them they will be evaluated equally along all other 
submissions. Remember – systems innovation is key! 
 
22): Question: churches partnering with community businesses and social services are eligible? Are 
churches eligible for this project? 
 
YES the faith-based sector is eligible to be a lead applicant and/or a partner in Connections Project 
Site applications (as outlined on page 10 of the Connections Project Information Packet.) Faith-
based communities can be involved or be a lead applicant as well as play a role of convener, 
provider of space, and chip in resources for ideas throughout the Connections Project term. (P.10 
Connections Project Information Packet) 
 
23): Question: Can we find out who else from DC is on this call so we could coordinate an application 
with them? 
 
In the effort of assisting teams with building partnerships we can provide you with a list of groups 
who attended the webinar from your state. Please email NCEH directly @ nceh@heartlandalliance.org 
for more information on this request.  
 
24): Question: We had anticipated responding in part based on the draft WIOA regs, which are now 
delayed. Since these regs are expected to be game-changing for our work on homelessness, but 
won't be available / prior to submission, what guidance would you have for applicants regarding 
organizing their proposals around new opportunities under WIOA? 
 
First off we say -- GO FOR IT!  -- and take all the steps necessary to submit your Connections Project 
innovative idea through our LOI. We know that your ideas may evolve over time as will WIOA 
regulations from DOL. Ultimately shoot for the moon and get your ideas in to us. If there is a 
significant aspect of WIOA regulations that impact your innovative idea we will work with teams on 
that down the road.  
 
25): Question: Who will own the final product from this project? 
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The information and learnings of the Connections Project will ultimately be shared with NCEH and 
the NI networks as well as through various potential publications. The spirit of the Connections 
Project is on collaboration and sharing of ideas and a willingness to adhere to this concept is 
important from Connections Project Teams. The information gathered throughout the term of the 
project will be gathered and distilled by NCEH. The longevity of the systems innovation is entirely up 
to the Connections Project Site.  
 
26): Question: What kind of supporting evidence are you looking for to demonstrate the "replicability" 
of a project? Must applicants ultimately commit to expanding to new service territories or helping 
other organizations implement the idea elsewhere? Or may applicants demonstrate ideas to 
theoretically be replicable without committing to specific steps to spread that idea? 
 
The latter – In your LOI we ask to hear about “What do you hope to share with the field and other 
Connections Project Sites?” (p. 3 Connections Project Letter of Intent). We are hopeful teams will 
want to share their new information with other Connections Project teams as well as their community 
as to how to replicate what they’ve done.  This information will be directly shared with NCEH and 
disseminated nationwide. Ultimately the distilling and spreading of this information will fall on NCEH 
with some assistance and participation from Connections Project teams.  
 
27): Question: It would be great to hear more information about evidence based practice (e.g. there 
aren't a lot in the field) and how you approach EBP and evidence informed practice or emerging 
practices 
 
Great Question - Your Connections Project ideas do not need to necessarily be evidence based or 
fully supported by the evidence currently available to us. We do ask that you provide justifications for 
why you think your innovation is key to benefiting homeless jobseekers. We ask that Connections 
Project Sites back up their hunch as to why they think their ideas will work. We also mention we’re 
looking for bold ideas that build on successes -- if your idea builds on existing collaborations and 
innovations be sure to provide your applicable justification.  
 
28): Question: What experts and professionals will be at the conference?  

“Over the course of the Workshop, finalist teams will meet with a wide variety of “coaches.” These 
experts will provide programmatic, technical, and creative input as the finalists test their concepts 
through the conference” (p.14 Connections Project Information Packet). Coaches may consist of for-
profit, non-profit, employers, city, state, and federal government, and philanthropic partners with 
expertise in homelessness, employment, income supports, reentry, veteran services, 
communications, marketing, product development, web and graphic design, and other unique and 
varying perspectives. Federal agency representatives [may come] from the Department of Labor, 
Health and Human Services, Housing and Urban Development 
 
29): Question: What do you mean by supplemental materials? Do you have an example of a 
supplemental material that we might turn in with our LOI?  
 
Connections Project Site team applicants may attach no more than two items as supplemental 
materials to bolster the Letter of Intent submission. These supplemental materials may be of any 
length but please remember less really is more (p. 1 Connections Project Letter of Intent). These 
materials can consist of anything Connections Project Teams think will bolster their idea including 
things like charts, studies that back up your idea, background information on your idea, testimonials, 
or research.  
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